ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
January 3, 2008
1: 07 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representative John Coghill (via tel econference)
Representative Crai g Johnson

Representative Andrea Doll (via tel econference)
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Con Bunde

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Departnment of Adm nistration Briefing on the Al aska Land Mbile
Radi o Project (ALMR

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

RACHEL PETRO, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to the Al aska
Land Mobil e Radi o (ALMR) project.

MATT LEVEQUE, Maj or

Adm ni strative Conmander

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers
Department of Public Safety
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 3, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Denonstrated the ALMR system

JI M KOHLER, Program Manager

Al aska Land Mobil e Radi o System

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during the presentation
on ALMR

M CHAEL O HARE, Project Manager

Al aska Statew de Energency Communi cations/|nformati on Technol ogy
(ASEC/ I T)

Admi ni strative Services Division

Department of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to ALMR

TI M WOODALL, Federal Project Manager

Al aska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) System

United States Departnent of Defense (DCOD)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to ALMR
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee

neeting to order at 1:07:29 PM Representatives Coghill (via
tel econference), Johnson, and Lynn were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Roses, G uenber g, and Dol | (via
tel econference) arrived as the neeting was in progress. Al so

present was Senator Bunde.

Briefing on Al aska Land Mbil e Radi o Project

1: 09: 11 PM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the only order of business was the
briefing on the Al aska Land Mbil e Radi o Project.

1: 09: 31 PM

RACHEL PETRO, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Adm nistration,
presented information related to the Alaska Land Mbile Radio
(ALMR) project. She stated that the project was at a critical
juncture and that the departnment has been working diligently to
address the issues and questions surrounding the project since
May of 2007. Moreover, mllions of federal and state taxpayer
doll ars have been invested in the project to date. Ms. Petro

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- January 3, 2008



said the admnistration nust address the issues raised in the
2005 audit, conplete the project build-out, and nove the system
into an operations and maintenance phase. She infornmed the
cormmittee that her presentation would be based on the "white
paper” and the "frequently asked questions” provided in the
committee packet.

M5. PETRO introduced the follow ng: Public Safety Conm ssioner
Walt Monegan, ALMR Executive Council nenber for the State of
Al aska; Anand Dubey, Enterprise Technol ogy Services Director for
the Department of Administration; Jim Kohler, ALMR program
manager since My, 2007; Dave Blaisdell, Enterprise Technol ogy
Services Deputy Director; Mjor Mttt Leveque, Deputy Director of
field operations for the Departnment of Public Safety and ALMR
User Council chair; Jeff Tucker, chief of the Northstar Fire
Departnent and representative of the Al aska Minicipal League on
the ALMR executive council; [ Kat hie \WAsser man, Executi ve
Director of the Alaska Muinicipal League]; Tim Wodall, program
manager for the Departnent of Defense; Del Smth, ALMR
operations managenent office coordinator; and Mke O Hare,
pr oj ect manager for Al aska St at ewi de Enmer gency
Communi cati ons/ I nformati on Technol ogy, Departnment of Mlitary &
Vet erans Affairs.

1: 14: 20 PM

M5. PETRO offered a brief history of ALMR  She said discussion
of an interoperable comrunication system in Al aska began in the
early 1990s and continued with the chartering of an executive
council to oversee a request for information (RFlI) in 1997.
That RFI ultimately resulted in the signing of a nenorandum of
understanding (MOU), in 2001, by the State of Alaska, the U S.
Department of Defense (DOD), non-DOD federal agencies, and the
Al aska Munici pal League. Those entities agreed to cooperatively
design and build a wreless, interoperable comunication system
in the interest of public safety and energency response. MVs.
Petro noted that the ALMR executive council consists of three
voting nenbers: the State of Alaska, DOD, and a representative

from the non-DOD federal agencies. She al so naned one current
and one anticipated associate nenber; the Al aska Minicipal
League and the Minicipality of Anchorage, respectively. The
executive council, she related, 1is the governing authority
responsi ble for oversight direction, as well as mnanagenent of
the system The wuser council, which is made up of twelve
menbers representing four constituency groups, is to nake
recommendations to the executive council regarding operations

and mai nt enance deci sions affecting the system

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 3, 2008



M5. PETRO defined the ALMR system as "a wreless, digital,
trunk, wde-area network, shared system between state and
federal agencies and local nunicipalities.” She explained that
the land nobile radio systemis a twd-way system used by first
responders and public safety officials for instant effective and

private communications during everyday operations. The system
al so provides the efficiency, security, and flexibility required
during energencies, on demand and in real tine. Agenci es

utilize the ALMR system for their daily conmunication system as
well as for interoperable communications for |arge interagency
emer gency responses.

M5. PETRO said the ALMR system also satisfies the federal
mssion and role requirements for 911, Honeland Defense,
Honel and Security, and defense assistance. Furthernore, the
system al so satisfies t he FCC- mandat ed narrow bandi ng
requi renents for 2012, "within its footprint."

1:17: 34 PM

CHAI R LYNN asked what ALMR can offer that is not currently being
provi ded.

M5. PETRO responded that the systemw !l allow |ocal, state, and
federal agencies the ability to comrunicate on one system She
of fered her understanding that there was a tine when Anchorage's
energency nedical technicians could not communicate with its
firemen, even though they were a part of the same nunicipality.

1: 18: 43 PM

MATT LEVEQUE, WMjor, Admnistrative Commander, Division of
Al aska State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety, denonstrated
the ALMR system by wusing it to <contact an intelligent
transportation systens project manager in the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities, a deputy chief of the
Fai rbanks Police Departnent, a dispatch center supervisor for
the Denali National Park Service, and finally, an ALMR systens
technician at Fort Richardson. In response to a question from
Chair Lynn, he explained that, with the exception of the call to
t he Fairbanks Police Departnment, the other calls were made on a
common channel and the people being called could hear the other
call s being nmade. He stated his hope that the commttee wll
wal k away with a sense of confidence about the current ability
of law enforcenent, first responders, and federal and state
agencies to conmuni cate with each other.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 3, 2008



1: 23: 09 PM

MAJOR LEVEQUE, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, said he is unaware if there has been a list conpiled
of agencies who coul d conceivably be reached through the system
He noted that there are common frequencies built into the
radi os; therefore, anyone using a "national standard comon
radio” would be able to interoperate wth others using that
frequency. He said he does not know if the systemis currently
designed to communicate with other countries. In response to a
guestion from Senator Bunde, he said there is a "satellite
reachback capability” which would nmake it possible in the future
to communicate at great distances; however, the system is not
currently set up to do that on a "day-to-day" basis. In
response to a followup question from Senator Bunde, as to
whet her other states use the ALMR system he offered his
understanding that "there are simlar systens wth simlar
capabilities designed differently."

M5. PETRO added, "But all to a basic P-25 standard.” She
suggested that Jim Kohler could speak on the capabilities of
ot her st ates.

1: 26: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked whether there was federa
| egislation on this issue and whether the federal governnent
could mandate that other states [use simlar technology]. He
noted that the Federal Enmergency Managenent Agency (FEMA) has
"sonme question as to its efficacy so far."

1: 27: 07 PM

JIM KOHLER, Program Manager, Al aska Land Mbbile Radio System
Department of Adm nistration, explained that the system operates
t hrough what is known as the P-25 standard. By the Rockefeller-
Morella Act [Public Law 104-113], federal agencies were given
the authority to establish a standard for an open environment.
Under the aegis of the Association of Public Safety Oficers, a
[federal] agency worked directly with the Telecomrunications
| ndustry Association (TIA) and gathered a statenent of need from
| ocal municipalities, state agencies, and federal agencies. M.
Kohl er explained that it is through that process that the TIA
ultimately established and adopted a single set of standards for
an interoperable public safety comunication system which is
known as the P-25 system or the P-25 standards. He said the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- January 3, 2008



answer to Representati ve Gruenberg' s guestion is t hat
comuni cations are possible with other states and other states
are trying to generate this kind of system Furt hernore, he
said that all of those states are building their system under
the sane P-25 system He said he knows of 15 to 18 states that
are in various stages of building and operating "this kind of

system"™ Most of those states, however, have not yet attenpted
to build a system that reaches from border to border, but
instead are focusing on their large population centers. He

remar ked that Alaska's system is unique because it is the nost
integrated and interoperable of any system currently being built
in the country.

1: 32: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said he would like to know what
percentage of the funding is from the federal governnent, what
is the source of the remainder of the funding, and whether the
federal funding will be ongoing.

M5. PETRO said the total cost has not yet been projected;
however, the cost to date is $150 million, two-thirds of which
is being supplied by the federal governnent. She said the DOD
is coomtted to the program The next step is to study the cost

of ownership and to determine what it will take to operate the
system Following that will be to determne "how we're going to
share that across the users.” She enphasized the seriousness of
the issue and the commtnent to it by all involved. |In response

to a question from Representative Johnson, she said the tota
cost of ownership study should be conpleted by the end of
February [2008], and the ALMR executive council should begin
di scussing the results in Mrch.

MR. KOHLER, in response to a question from Senator Bunde, said
he is not aware of a federal requirenent that all states devel op
an interoperable system however, he said any state that does
try to develop an interoperable system wll follow the P-25
st andards.

MS. PETRO continued her presentation. Regarding slide 4 of the
Power Poi nt, she reviewed the reasons that ALMR is inportant:
for day-to-day use, for energency use, and for the benefit of
cost efficiencies.

1: 37:17 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 3, 2008



M5. PETRO said cost efficiency is a concept at this point;
however, ALMR would enable various entities to share costs of
i npl enentation, operations, and nmaintenance, which would nake
the use of the ALMR system possible for many agencies that would
otherwi se not be able to afford it. However, she reiterated
that although the total cost is yet unknown, a significant
i nvestnment has already been nade. She said she would address
this issue later on in the presentation. Referring to the
information on slide 5, M. Petro noted that there are currently
12,000 radios in use in 55 local state and federal agencies in
Al aska. Failure of the ALMR system would nean snaller entities
would have to bear the cost of individual systens, and this
coul d cause sone of themto return to a conventional systemthat
does not provide the capacity that the trunked ALMR system
provi des. The result could be a linmted interoperability of
conmuni cations anong agencies, because an individual system may
not be able to neet the federally mandated security
requi renents. Those federal requirenents, she explained, nake
t he i nteroperabl e conmuni cati on possi bl e.

VB. PETRO stated that, in the process referred to as
"refarm ng," the Federal Comrunication Conmm ssion (FCC) adopted
requirenents in 1992 to enhance spectrum efficiency in the VHF
and UHF | and nobile radio band. The FCC requirenents, known as
the FCC mandatory narrow banding, noved nobile radio |icenses
from the 25 kilohertz bandwidth to a 12.5 kil ohertz bandw dth

Al though those requirenents were adopted in 1992, FCC has
extended inplenmentation deadlines along the way. The current
deadline, M. Petro noted, requires all <current 25 Kkilohertz
licenses to relocate to the 12.5 kil ohertz by Decenber 31, 2012.

SENATOR BUNDE asked whether it would be accurate to say that the
differentiation between state users and mnunicipality users is an
artificial one, because the state will probably be providing the
radi os.

M5. PETRO replied that that is a decision that has not yet been
made. She said there are costs not only associated with the
equi pment , but also in operating and mai ntaining the
infrastructure of the system Both issues will be addressed,
and the legislature will be involved in that process. She
stated that she is aware of the concerns of the nmunicipalities
and agenci es.

1:42: 32 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 3, 2008



M5. PETRO, in response to a followup question from Senator
Bunde, said she does not know the cost of each radio.

CHAIR LYNN surmsed that the cost of the radios will be nuch
| ess than the cost of operating and naintaining them

MR. KOHLER reported that 2,155 radios in use by the state
represent a dollar investnent of approximately $10.6 million. A
"smart box" costs approxi mately $5, 000.

MR. KOHLER, in response to Representative Johnson's questions,
said the initial radios were manufactured by Mtorola, but other
manuf acturers have started entered the narket in response to the
growi ng denmand. In terms of the total nunber of wusers, it is
estimated that, when everything currently under construction is
conpl eted, the nunber of wusers wll increase from the current
12,770, to approximately 15,000, and as the system expands, so
will the nunber of users. The final nunber that will be reached
will depend on two factors: how nuch expansion there is to
parts of the state not currently covered, and how many entities
currently using the system expand their use to other people. He
of fered an exanpl e.

1: 47:17 PM

MR. KOHLER, in response to Chair Lynn, said whoever buys the
radio owns it, and he estimated the typical lifespan of a radio
is well beyond that of a cell phone and would extend three to
five years. He suggested that each nanufacturer could supply
that information

M5. PETRO, in response to Chair Lynn, pointed out a map included
in the conmmttee packet that shows the areas of Alaska in which
there are infrastructures that allow the radios to work; it
shows "line of sight.”

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that there can not be line of sight
bet ween "here and Barrow. "

MR. KOHLER said the system has several conponents to it, and the
critical conponent is the mcrowave system that the state
operates, known as the State of Al aska Tel ecomruni cations System
(SATS), which is a string of mcrowave sites that cover the

extent to which "our mcrowave systemexists in the state.” The
ALMR system he explained, is equipnent that is attached to
those mcrowave sites. The ALMR system is plugged into

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 3, 2008



approximately 80 of the 160 SATS sites, from which point it can
get where it needs to go.

1:51: 45 PM

MR. KOHLER, in response to Chair Lynn, confirmed that if one
connection is lost, it does not affect the other connections.
In response to a followup, he estimated the cost of naking
connections to the mcrowave system is, on average, $500, 000;
however, if an antenna already exists, the cost would be
consi derably | ower.

M5. PETRO, in response to Chair Lynn, said the cost for
preventive mai ntenance is still being determ ned.

1:54: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON observed, "Wen | look at that map, | see
al nost all those places are connected by fiber optics. Wy are
we using what I consider antiquated technology wth a
m cr owave?"

VR. KOHLER confirnmed that a significant anmount of the
connections have commercial fiber optic capability that would be
avai |l abl e; however, he explained that the system nust be robust
and independent enough to exist even in the event of a "fiber
failure.” He recalled an event that severed both fiber
connections between Anchorage and Fairbanks. He enphasized the
i nportance of having a system that operates separately in the
event of an energency. He said there is no doubt that a fiber
optics system can handle nmany types of issues that a mcrowave
system cannot. Furthernore, M. Kohler acknow edged that he is
not saying that fiber optics will not be used in the future, but
said, "The system you have now was built on the foundation of
t hose project demands and those project decisions.”

1:58: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that a satellite system would
probably be the nobst secure choice, and Al aska could have one
| aunched to orbit over the state for $20 mllion. He asked if
t hat option could be considered.

MR. KOHLER responded that there is no perfect system each one
has its advantages and disadvantages. He said satellite
ultimately does have a place and the systemis being built to be
able to "utilize that architecture.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- January 3, 2008



2:02:15 PM

M5. PETRO returned to her presentation, offering a history of
the ALMR system First, she said, the system began with a plan
to construct 49 sites jointly by DOD and the State of Al aska.
The design for the system expanded to include 41 additional
sites to be constructed by the state, and |ater expanded again
to include the construction of an additional 15 sites by the
Municipality of Anchorage on its Anchorage Wde Area Network
(AWARN) system The ALMR system was designed to provide
i nteroperable comunication along the road system but, as
denonstrated by the map on slide 6 of the PowerPoint, grew to
i nclude Kodiak and Southeast Al aska. Since the 2001 MAU was
signed, seventy-four active sites have been built, and seven
sites are under construction and are scheduled to be operational
by the end of August or Septenber of 2008.

M5. PETRO noted that, of the two maps in the commttee packet,
one nanes the Juneau [and Skagway] area sites [because it does
not include Southeast Al aska], while the other shows those sites

on the rmap. Wth the conpletion of the sites under
construction, the system will include a total of 81 sites at a
cost of up to $150 million. She explained that that nunber was

thought to be firm a couple of nonths ago; however, after
exanmning the total cost of ownership study, that nunber is
anticipated to go down. She noted that there were nine sites
pl anned for construction in 2008; however, the expected federa
grant funding was not received, so those sites are pushed "into
a future space" and could cost $5 nmillion to $7 mllion to
conpl et e.

M5. PETRO, in response to a question from Chair Lynn, said she
is not certain why the federal funding was not received. She
noted that the governor's original fiscal year '08 (FY 08)
budget included a $14.1 million federal authority for receipts.
She continued, "In February, we learned that we weren't eligible
for [$14.1 mllion], we were eligible for [$10 mllion]. And
then, in May, we learned that the feds were redoing the entire

grant process, and that the state ..., including municipalities
., would only be eligible for about $6 nillion, and, of that,
[there was] only one entity ... - | think it was in Fairbanks -

that received any funding."

CHAIR LYNN asked if the Congressional delegation has been nade
aware of the situation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- January 3, 2008



MS. PETRO confirned that those involved with ALMR speak with the
del egates regularly concerning interoperable conmunications.
She offered that M. O Hare would provide further details.

2:06: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for confirmation that the cost of
building the remaining sites is already included in the
af orenenti oned plus or mnus $150 mllion.

M5. PETRO answered that is correct.

M CHAEL O HARE, Project WMnager, Alaska Statew de Energency
Communi cations/ I nformation Technology (ASEC/IT), Admnistrative
Services Division, Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs, in
response to a concern expressed by Representative G uenberg
regarding the grant process, noted that there had been a
col | aborative application between the Departrment of Mlitary &
Veterans Affairs and ALMR system to provide further devel opnent
of the ALMR application, as well as developnent of DWA's
st at ewi de ener gency comuni cati on system That j oi nt
application was denied with no reason given. He confirmed that
Ms. Petro was correct in her recollection that Fairbanks was the
only area awarded the Technology Opportunities Program (TOP)
grant noney.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her Ms. Petro had devel oped a
plan B [for funding].

M5. PETRO said DOD is dependent on the ALMR system and wi |l not
be abandoning it; however, the cost sharing issues have not yet
been determ ned. She said she would be willing to speak on the
topic of the aforenmentioned nine sites and plans B and C

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that the board develop a plan B
for funding when it neets in March

2:10:41 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said ALMR would be good for Al aska, and although
many woul d have proceeded in a nore cautious manner initially,
he said, "W are where we are." He posited that the crux of the
issue is that DOD is deeply involved, but the state and
muni ci palities are not necessarily the responsibility of DOD.
Senator Bunde suggested that the State of Al aska may need to
conmit to a "trust ne" contract - one in which all the blanks
are not filled in. He said he does not know what the future is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 3, 2008



in terns of federal funding, but nobst people realize that Al aska
is not going to be "at the head of the line" like it has been in
t he past. He expressed his hope that there wll be further
di scussi on about signing a contract w thout knowing the details
and the cost to the state.

M5. PETRO said she would discuss the cooperative agreenent and
subsequent agreenents that need to be fornmed to nove the system
f orward. Regarding contracts, she stated, "From a state
perspective, we are obligated by our parent system to make sure
that anything that we sign and commt to, not only goes through
that process, but also has the appropriate appropriation from
the legislature to fund it."

TIM WOODALL, Federal Project Manager, Al aska Land Mbile Radio
(ALMR) System said DOD got involved in this cooperative
approach with the State of Al aska because of the need to provide
“(indisc.) authority" and its need to be able to interoperate
with state and |ocal agencies. He said DOD typically operates
within its "fences" on land nobile radio, which is a service
that Congress has nmandated nust be used by first response
entities and operated on specific spectruns allocated to public
safety. The spectrum he explained, is divided between state
and | ocal agencies and governed by the FCC. On the federal side
of the House it is governed under the executive branch through
t he Depart ment of Conmmer ce, Nat i onal Tel ecomruni cati ons
I nformation Adm nistration (NClA). In both cases, he said,
Congress, as a result of agreenments in Geneva, under the
wor | dwi de radio adm nistrative conmttee, required public safety
agencies to carry land nobile radios. This is true anywhere in
t he worl d.

MR. WOODALL relayed that land nobile radio is a dispatch-centric
technol ogy, which is why the Association of Public Safety
Communi cations Oficials had to define a standard. The previous
barriers to interoperability, he noted, were proprietary

standards being used by different conpanies. He offered an
exanpl e. The other barrier, he said, was the lack of joint
planning to build conpatible systens. The lack of standards

made it inpossible to communicate.

MR. WOODALL spoke of the aforementioned change to a narrowband
spectrum from the 25 kilohertz channel spacing. He said both
the FCC and the NCIA saw the demand for public safety |and
mobile radio requirenents and interoperability and the need to
foll ow Honel and Security Presidential Directives-5 and -8, which
said that federal, state, and |ocal agencies nust follow the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 3, 2008



Nat i onal | ncident Managenent System and be able to operate with
each other. The president, through executive order, established
Statewi de Communi cations Interoperability Planning Methodol ogy
(SAFECOM), an organization that is driving the public safety
operability comunications grant, for which the state has just
worked a statewi de interoperability plan. Local governnent and
state agencies, he said, cannot get grant noney to buy the |and
nobile radios from the federal governnent, unless they have
federal, state, and |ocal agencies planning together on how to
i nteroperate and have shared systens within federal, state, and
| ocal agencies. M. Wodall nanmed the states that are follow ng
these mandates in order to receive grants, including: New York

Pennsyl vania, M chigan, ©Ghio, Colorado, Nevada, Won ng, and
Cal i fornia.

MR. WOODALL said DOD is conmtted to Alaska; it has put up
approximately $72 mllion to date in infrastructure and
subscri ber equipnent. In addition, the DOD has hosted equi pment
in state sites and it has done so in a partnership with the
state, so that there is interdependency.

2:17: 38 PM

MR. WOODALL stated that spectrum is shared between the federa

executive branch and the FCC public safety so that DOD spectrum
is paired with state and |ocal spectrum Furthernore, DOD is
sharing infrastructure and the cost of building the system In
terms of operations and mai ntenance, he said he concurred wth
Ms. Petro that all of the costs are not known. Notw thstanding,

he noted that the system has been operating since 2004, and it
was built in phases. He stated, "W do have an operational cost
basis for what that costs to operate, and that's what the TCO
[(total cost of ownership)] is docunenting.” He said there are
contracts that are paid annually that mintain the current
infrastructure of the system

MR. WOODALL reminded the commttee that land nobile radio is
designed under a public safety standard to neet public safety
demands. Agenci es responsible for public safety cannot buy any
other type of radio on which to operate other than that which
uses the particular spectrum allocated by Congress. Thus,
because there are but few entities that have a detailed and
techni cal requirenment for communicating, the costs of the radios
they use are nmuch higher than a cell phone. He noted that FCC
mandates that public safety systens be privately owned by the
state. The purpose for that, he explained, is that "the FCC

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- January 3, 2008



will not let you conpete for comunications with the public in
an energency."

MR. WOODALL pointed out the features of the radio on display in
the commttee room For exanple, there is a red button that is
pushed to indicate that an officer has been shot. There are
many safety and security factors built into the radio that allow
firefighters to take it into a fire. He listed the |ongstanding
barriers to interoperability between public safety agencies:
pl anni ng, technol ogy, funding, and spectrum He said Congress,
t hrough the Tel ecomunications Act of 1934, divided the radio

frequency spectrum into "islands," separating state and | ocal
agencies from federal agencies that required spectrum for
nati onal defense purposes. M. Wodall said Congress did not
want the president to be able to take spectrum from state and
| ocal agenci es. He referred to the spectrum sharing agreenent
that resulted as a response to the House of Representatives
Conference  Report 1705, which energed from a defense
appropriations bill in the year 2000. The agreenent is that the
Department of Defense will work cooperatively with the FCC and

the Departnment of Public Safety to work out the ability to share
spectrum between federal and state agencies.

2:23:27 PM

MR. WOODALL continued to explain that the US. Ofice of
Managenent & Budget nandates federal agencies, including DOD,
the U S. Departnment of Justice, the U S. Departnment of Treasury,
and the U S. Departnent of Honmeland Security, to attenpt, in all
cases, to share systens for public safety purposes anong

federal, state, and |ocal agencies. He concluded, "For all of
those reasons, we, the Departnent of Defense in Al aska, are
engaged with the state and |local agencies, ... in working

together for an infrastructure, and we're commtted in the |ong
run for maintaining this system in this type of shared
envi ronnment . "

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the nobile units used by the
National CGuard are part of the system to which M. Wodall
referred.

MR. WOODALL said yes. He further explained that the ALMR system
addr esses f our pillars of i nteroperability: fixed
infrastructure which provides general coverage along roadways;
critical infrastructure inside buildings such as hospitals; at
gateways, such as utilities, so that they can conmunicate with
public safety agencies; and, through the use of transportable

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 3, 2008



equi pnent, the ability to restore conmmunications wthin two
hours in the event of a breakdown, and to expand coverage
out side of the permanent infrastructure.

2:27: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES observed that the nobile units and their
operators are very inpressive and the vast coverage and
interoperability provided by them is inportant. He expressed
his belief that the cost of the units is not a concern because
public safety agencies need the best tools possible. However,
he is concerned about whether this system will be obsol ete when
it is finally operational. Representative Roses stated that his
experience with the DOD, the active mlitary, and the Nationa
Guard, indicates that Alaska is the standard all states should
be trying to achieve. He hoped to continue that standard with
the interoperability of Al aska's public safety units.

2:29: 52 PM

MR. WOODALL advised the conmmttee that the technology being
inplenmented is the latest technology in Iland nobile radio
syst ens. The state agencies were previously operating on 30
year old conventional radio equipnment and he questioned how
often systens should be updated. The DOD was on a trunked
system for 18 years and the Al aska system was not replaced until
the narrow band nandates required replacenent. He pointed out
that this equipnment should last the Ilife cycle of the system
Furthernore, the technology that the state is noving from which
is the standard two way radio, is now a true, digital, voice
over [Internet technology] integrated system As a result, the
radios are software defined and enhancenent for the future is
avai lable for software wupgrades, wthout throwing equipnent

away. The cost of wupdating the system is sinply "running
software. "

CHAIR LYNN asked what wll be the biggest <challenge to
i npl enentation, cost sharing or |egislative funding.

2:32:21 PM

M5. PETRO said this issue wll be addressed later in the

presentati on.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSON pointed out t hat the cooperative
agreenent was signed in Decenber, 2007. He asked whether the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 3, 2008



federal funding was not received because the agreenent was not
in place prior to the time of the application.

M5. PETRO opined that the agreenent required is the |ocal
agreenment for the operation of the radios. She added that the
cooperative agreenent was in draft form for alnost three years
and the goal for it to be signed in June "slipped."”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified that his point is whether the
state did everything possible to qualify for the federal nopney
and did not "drop the ball."

M5. PETRO opined that the state did not drop the ball, in fact,
it worked closely with [U S Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget]
and consistently received the funding for the past several
years. She said, "The feds totally redid their grant progrant
and stated her intention to pursue the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON encouraged the acquisition of federal
noney.

CHAI R LYNN poi nted out that federal noney "is still our noney."
SENATOR BUNDY observed that the M)A is a precursor to a
contract; however, there are no details on cost. He questi oned
whet her, after taking three years to execute the MOA, all of the
cost details will be known in five nonths.

M5. PETRO re-stated her intent to address that issue. She

returned to her presentation and referred to the nine sites that
were not federally funded. The reason ALMR has not included a
request for a state fund to replace the federal funding is that
her departnent believes it is critical to conplete the sites
that are currently funded and to address the 2005 |egislative
audit concerns. The plan is to conplete the project as
inherited from the previous admnistration, and it is currently
funded by the 1legislature. Secondly, the system needs to
transition to an operations and nai ntenance node, which forces
the cost issues to energe. She indicated that there are nmany
i ssues, policies, and procedures that have to be worked through
prior to making the system bigger through nore sites and
expanded coverage. The nost critical of these is the cost
component . She concluded that the success of the ALMR system
depends on an wunbrella governance agreenent that allows the
system wth its partners, to nove from the build-out phase to
the operations and nmaintenance phase. Furthernore, the total

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 3, 2008



cost of ownership agreenent becones an appendix of the
cooperative agreenent and shows the cost.

2:38:55 PM

SENATOR BUNDY assuned that executing a cooperative agreenent
woul d be a conmtnent on the state's part.

M5. PETRO indicated yes. She then relayed that there is a
choice, in fact, the attorney general's office has ensured that
there are exits and for commtnents not yet nmade. The DOA has
noved forward in good faith and does not intend to withdraw,
however, there are serious issues to address, such as how to pay
for it, how to share cost anobng state users, and how to share

costs with other users. The state could wal k away, she said.
Ms. Petro noted that a TCO study in March of 2005, reported $92
mllion expended in that fiscal year. However, the study did
not project a final "all in" cost. The tinme line for the | atest
estimate, conpiled with the DOD, is that the estimate wll be
avai l able for discussion by the ALMR executive council in late
February. After the conpletion of the estimate, her departnent
and the cooperating partners will be able to estimte operating
and mai ntenance costs. Until then, the strategy to nove forward
is in the follow ng phases: phase one, conpletion of the ALMR

buil d-out; phase two, transition of the system to an operations
and nmintenance phase; phase three, system enhancenment or
upgr ades. She advised that, if the TCO indicates that the
system should not, or can not, be maintained, "W wll need to
revisit the strategy, and we are very aware of that."
Meanwhil e, the primary docunentation and policy for the build-
out phase, through the operation and nai ntenance phase, expires

at end of the current fiscal year, in June of 2008. She
stressed that, even though the phase that is funded by the DOD
Wil | expire, the DOD wll continue to be a key ALMR cost
sharing partner. Another challenge is the devel opnent and

execution of the nultiple sub-agreenments that are necessary to
transition the system to its operation and naintenance phase.
After the transition to the operation and maintenance phase,
ALMR will work with its partners on on-going tasks and to
identify future expansion.

2:43: 41 PM

M5. PETRO continued to explain that the cooperative agreenent
must be finalized by all partners by the end of June. The
agreenent will include total project cost, and how naintenance
and operation costs wll be shared. The sub-agreenents are in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 3, 2008



draft form and now al so nust be finalized and agreed to by al

partners, in fact, the ALMR executive council nust decide
unani nously. The agreenents include: system description, which
defines all the conponents of owner shi p; service |evel

agreenent, which defines mninum operational requirenments; the
total cost of ownership study; the cost sharing agreenent, which
details apportionnment of annual ALMR operations and naintenance

costs; menbership agreenent, which defines the terns,
conditions, and charges for access to the system and an
or gani zat i onal structure. In phase two, as the sub-agreenents
are finalized, there will be thousands of tasks to conplete the
transition to operations and nmintenance, in fact, human and
fiscal resources needed to conplete four thousand tasks are
pl anned. She stressed that her team is very commtted to its
goal to conplete this phase prior to the end of the fiscal year.
Exanples of the tasks to be conpleted are: devel oping site

specific equipnment and facility site sharing agreenents; the
transfer of equipnent fromthe DOD to the state; resolution of
the radio frequency conflicts; developing spectrum managenent
and security and asset managenent and policy procedure; and the
devel opnment of standard operating procedures. She pointed out
that the policy and procedures conpleted in phase two will help
ALMR and its users to build a business case to support future
expansi on. She returned to the subject of the nine sites that
| ost federal funding and identified them as: Wangell, Sitka
Pet ersburg, Craig, Rugged Island, M. Susitna, Curry , Tunnel
and G | nore.

CHAI R REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for clarification on the "tunnel
sites."

[ (I ndisc.) response.]

CHAI R REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said, "So, this would be for energency
inside the tunnel, ... but you can talk to people outside the
tunnel ?"

[ (I ndisc.) response.]

M5. PETRO continued to explain that there is also proposed
expansion of the system for the Tok G ennallen H ghway corridor,
north of Fairbanks along the Steese Hi ghway, and Kodiak |sland
| aunch facility. Enhancenents and upgrades to the system are
proposed for North Pole and near Houston.

CHAIR LYNN opined that the launch facility expansion is for
nati onal defense.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 3, 2008



M5. PETRO identified key strategies to keep the project on task.
The first strategy is for Conm ssioner Kreitzer to appoint a
vol unteer advisory group that wll have collective experience
across telecommuni cations; |arge project managenent; and mnulti-
agency project inplenentation and planning. In addition, the
advi sor group will be charged with review ng the najor decisions
facing the DOA through the final stages of the ALMR project,
including the TCO study. Another strategy is the control of the

project's growh. It will be essential to focus on the details
that will allow the system as built , to operate successfully
and nove to the operating and maintenance phase. Thirdly,

Comm ssioner Kreitzer has requested an Ofice of Mnagenent &
Budget (OMB) audit to help determne what areas of concern
identified in the 2005 legislative audit remain and what issues
have been resolved. The OVB has agreed to conduct an audit and
is currently drafting its scope. Finally, there is a focus to
separate ALMR from SATS. She rem nded the committee that ALM
use SATS sites throughout Al aska, in fact, the ALMR and the SATS
teamis basically the sane. Fundi ng for SATS has | angui shed as
funding for ALMR has been secured. Only SATS sites where ALMR
equi pnent has been placed have received appropriate maintenance.
It is critical that the SATS system be maintained so it can
continue to provide support to all state tel ecommunications as
well as ALMR To do so, the SATS team and budget wll be
separated from the ALMR project team in FYO09. She further
expl ained that SATS is the 160 m crowave site system that serves
as the state's telecomunication system backbone. Qut si de of
Anchorage's and Juneau's fiber links, SATS supports w de area
networks, data, television, the Al aska Rural Conmunications
System (ARCS), highway call boxes, ALMR video conferencing, and
carries dedicated voice and video transm ssion capability. The
SATS also supports the state's convention two way radio and
paging system which operates outside the current ALMR service
areas. Again, she stressed that all state agencies along with a
wi de variety of |ocal agencies rely on the SATS backbone.

2:55:29 PM
M5. PETRO re-stated her belief that it is critical to conplete
the build-out, and determ ne operating and maintenance costs,

before requesting additional capital or operating funds for
FY09.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether there are private users of
SATS.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 3, 2008



MS. PETRO sai d she was unsure.
[ Unknown speaker and (indisc.) response.]

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what system is used by the Al aska
Mari ne H ghway System

M5. PETRO said she was unsure.
[ Uhknown speaker and (indisc.) response.]

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that the DOD has a gateway or
wi ndows system that allows sone standard conmunication systens
into SATS. He stressed the inportance of figuring into the
final operating and mai ntenance costs the installation of broad
gateways that allow many users, such as a local fire departnent,
the AVHS, and private airplanes, into the system

CHAIR LYNN suggested that cell phones or telephones could be
pat ched i n.

3:01:12 PM
[ Unknown speaker and indisc. response. ]

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON acknowl edged that these systens are not
cheap and advocated that, when the final costs are presented
to the legislature, the installation of broad gateways should be
i ncl uded.

M5. PETRO said, "That is a challenge ... we don't have future
plans other than those nine sites.” As far as future
infrastructure cost, phase three is a "placeholder" because
there is not capital funding for the expansion of core
i nfrastructure. Once her departnent has the TCO st udy, t here
wi || good data for the devel opnent of a business case.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON pointed out that, if the state is going
to have a resilient systemthat wll serve in the future, these
are options that need to be discussed.

M5. PETRO concurred.
MR OHARE informed the conmmttee that, over the past six
mont hs, the DWA, the DOA, and the Departnent of Public Safety

(DPS), have also been involved in an application for a Public
Safety |Interoperable Comunications (PSIC) grant that required

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 3, 2008



the state to provide to the federal governnent a statew de
energency pl an. Devel opnent of the plan was a coll aboration of

t hose departnents and enconpassed a statew de perspective. He
shared that the DWA' s concern is for renote comunities that
ALMR will not serve. The PSIC grant would provide tactical,
regional, comunications packages that facilitate a quick
response and provide internet protocol (IP) gateways avail able
to first responders. There would also be a "reachback”
capability to allow comunication wth state troopers and the
Nat i onal Cuard. He advised that conmmunication bridges and

gateways are available now and allow comrunication with a wde
vari ety of systens.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked, "Why don't we have a bunch of
gat eways, instead of building $500, 000 m crowave towers."

M5. PETRO said, "I don't have the answer to that."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON gave an exanple of Bethel preferring a
gat ewnay.

[ Unknown speaker] indicated there are different types of gateway
syst ens. The gateway system planned with the ALMR system is a
di spatched centric gateway system neaning that the control of
the gateway system is at the dispatch |ocation. A stand al one
gateway cannot be connected and disconnected as required. W
have conducted a system design and analysis and do have a cost
basis for the inplenentation of a gateway system on the ALM
system In addition, there is a concept of operations for how
the system woul d be enployed. The DOD has awarded a contract to
put in its portion of +the gateway system and operational
managenment control stations are |ocated at the Fairbanks and
Anchor age energency operations center |ocations.

3:08:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON re-stated his question. "Wy would a
comunity buy into the ALMR system when ... everything can be
attached to that [gateway] system so that we, in Anchorage,
could talk to every policeman in Bethel through a gateway as
opposed to through a ... $3,000 hand held unit?"

[ Uhknown speaker] stated that Bethel would still need to buy the

unit, and would then need to tie to infrastructure on its own,
i nstead of sharing infrastructure.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 3, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recalled previous testinony that a
gateway could connect with a cell phone. He then asked why
Bethel would need individual boxes when the gateway would
connect with its internal dispatch

[ Unknown speaker]re-stated that Congress has defined that public
saf ety conmuni cati ons nust operate in the land nobile radio band
and can not be in a systemthat conpetes with the public.

M5. PETRO clarified that there is a mandate for all public
safety entities to nove fromthe 25 [kil ohertz bandwi dth] to the
12.5 [kilohertz bandwi dth], therefore, the ALMR system wthin
its current footprint, enables connections to the system at a
greater cost efficiency, even though the entities wll have to
buy the radi os.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON surmised that, sonetine prior to 2012
there will be a revenue sharing request from every comunity in
the state for radios.

M5. PETRO acknow edged that there is the possibility of requests
from communities for funds, either to develop their own system
or to join the ALMR system

CHAI R LYNN asked for questions fromthe nmenbers who are online.
3:12: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL expressed her concern about the msuse of
funds audit itens and then asked whether the tineline presented
a "crisis." She also asked what the presenter wanted the
conmittee to do.

CHAIR LYNN also inquired as to whether the presenter expected
the commttee to sponsor |egislation.

3:14: 45 PM

M5. PETRO opined that the tineline does not present a crisis
situation, but rather a challenge. The DOA has set out an
aggressive path to success and she said that she has confidence
in the team This process of enterprise technology service and
the project nmanagenent philosophy has changed dramatically from
how the state has done business in the past. She wll| keep the
coommittee informed wth regard to the tineline and other
chal l enges that nay ari se. She explained that the presentation
today was an opportunity to show the comrittee the progress on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 3, 2008



the project and its current status. Ms. Petro noted that
recommendations and input from the commttee are always val ued.
She confirnmed that she has already nmet with several individual
representatives and those in the Senate and House Finance
Conmi tt ees.

3:17:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked whether there was a bill to be
expect ed.

MS. PETRO said there would not be a bill this year.
3:18:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that the vast part of the
state that is not covered by the ALMR network is in the Bush,
and nost of the disasters in the state occur in the areas that
are not covered areas. In fact, these are the sane areas where
Village Public Safety O ficers (VPSGs) have been cut. He stated
that he has heard nothing about whether this system will help
t he Bush areas of Al aska. He then asked whether the system wl|
interface with any of the Native Corporations or areas wthout
VPSCs. In addition, he asked whether there will be interfacing
with the Coast Guard or the [Marine Exchange of Al aska].

M5. PETRO explained that the ALMR system is designed for the
coverage indicated on the [Alaska Land Mbile Radio "ALM
Enterprise Network Map, ALMRmapl3b Dec 2007.] She pointed out
that it 1is the role of the DWA to provide energency
comuni cations throughout the state. However, she acknow edged
that it is sonetinmes confusing to determne the different roles
and responsibilities of the DOA and the DWA Under the DOA s
primary role of providing services, the DOA is responsible for
making sure that the ALMR is functional for the state users.
Qovi ously, the ALMR cooperative and the governance nodel require
coordination and planning, in particular to ensure the ability
to interface with DWA in their responsibility to provide
ener gency communi cation capabilities to the state.

3:20:46 PM

MR. O HARE confirmed that the ALMR system primarily focuses on
the road system and the Railbelt. The DWA is required by
statute to provide energency communication services throughout
the state should the typical lines of comunication go down. He

agr eed that many disasters occur outside the network of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 3, 2008



ALMR system and re-stated that his departnment has applied for a
f eder al gr ant under t he Publ i c Safety | nt er oper abl e
Comruni cations program to provide a statewde strategic
comuni cations solution that woul d provide regional response
tactical conmunications packages. For instance, should a
community in the Kotzebue, None, Barrow, and D llingham region
require assistance, there would be a tactical responder that
would travel to the community and plug into the interoperable

communi cation capability. The grant will provide funding for
the technology, and in addition, will provide training for the
manpower needed for operations. He concluded that the DWA is

answering the call with a very good plan to provide service to
the vast and diverse areas of the state, including conmunities
that |ack funding or nodern equipnent. M. O Hare nentioned
that the devel opnent of the statew de emergency communications
plan also identified the needs of comunities and possible
solutions to those needs.

CHAIR LYNN expressed surprise that there is not a future site
pl anned for the North Sl ope.

3:24:51 PM

MR O HARE pointed out that Barrow would be a "fine hub.”
However, the North Slope is on a road system and he questioned
the cost effectiveness of providing conmunications there over
the satellite telephone system that is mintained by the oil
conpani es.

M5. PETRO relayed that a major radio project is being devel oped
for all of the conpanies on the North Sl ope.

There was a brief discussion on the priority of comunications
for the North Sl ope region.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for the anticipated tineline of the
conpl etion of "that plan.”

MR. O HARE indicated five years. He added that the application
has just been submtted.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked who woul d be the | ead agency.
MR. O HARE responded that the Division of Honeland Security
falls under the DWA, thus in an energency response the |ead

agency would be the DWA There is a "fine line" for the
standard adm nistrative conmmunications and infrastructure that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 3, 2008



the DOA is required to provide. He concluded that everybody
wi |l coll aborate together.

M5. PETRO added that the technical answer is that the DWA is
the lead agency for energency comunications and, under the
provisions of the PSIC grant, is responsible to coordinate with
all other agencies. The DOA is responsible for the day-to-day
operations and the basic infrastructure. She stressed the
i nportance of constant comrunication and coordination with all
agenci es, including the Departnment of Public Safety.

3:28:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG observed that the DWA role [in
enmergency comrunication] is nandated in statute. Furt her nor e,
he noted that the agencies have a signed agreenent and that the
DOA is not seeking additional legislation at this tine. One of
the lessons from Hurricane Katrina, and the reverse of [the
terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001], was that there were
turf wars. He opined that this commttee has a limted role in
the day-to-day nanagenent of the agencies, but one thing the
| egislature can do is to nmake certain that the lines of
authority are clear and widely understood in order to mnimze
turf wars. He asked, "How is that going to be acconplished?"

M5. PETRO agreed and assured the conmttee that the agencies

work very hard not to have turf battles. Further, she stated
that the DOA would like to work with this commttee and the
legislature to nake these lines clear, particularly regarding

the ALMR where responsibilities have sw tched back and forth.
Currently, the statute is very clear about the DOA's
responsibility for i nformation t echnol ogy and
t el econmuni cati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his preference not to refer this
guestion to the legislature, but to continue the dialog until
there is a necessity to make changes in statute. The conmittee
does not want to outline protocol.

MR. O HARE stressed the necessity of frequent exercises to test
the technical and human el enents of the system He pointed out
that ALMR has been involved in the governance and exercise
aspect of energency services and conmunication; this is how
agenci es figure out how things go w ong.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded to Representative Roses and
said, "The legislature is a reactive body, we are used to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- January 3, 2008



dealing with a bill that is brought to us.”™ However, this is a
techni cal conmmuni cati on problem of which nost of the nenbers do
not have a background. He encouraged Ms. Petro to devel op
| egislation to resolve any problens that may ari se.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES opined that the active mlitary and the
Nat i onal Guard have established protocol [to determ ne the |ead
agency in a crisis]. He expressed his appreciation of the
presentation and offered his assistance.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ayed that, in Anchorage, there are
comunity patrols that receive snmall grants fromthe |egislature
for the purchase of radios. He noted the problem they have
getting their grant funds.

M5. PETRO stated that the DOA does not nmanage those grants. She
said she would find out whether the community radi os are part of
t he AWARN program

MR. O HARE [i ndi sc. --inaudi bl e.]

3:39:51 PM

CHAIR LYNN thanked the presenters. He noted the paranount
i nportance of public safety.

3:42: 30 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:42
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 3, 2008



